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Disclaimer 

This document is provided with no warranties whatsoever, including any warranty of 
merchantability, non-infringement, fitness for any particular purpose, or any other 
warranty with respect to any information, result, proposal, specification, or sample 
contained or referred to herein. Any liability, including liability for infringement of any 
proprietary rights, regarding the use of this document or any information contained 
herein is disclaimed. No license, express or implied, by estoppel or otherwise, to any 
intellectual property rights is granted by or in connection with this document. This 
document is subject to change without notice. PCP WISE has been financed with support 
from the European Commission. This document reflects only the view of the author(s) and 
the European Commission cannot be held responsible for any use which may be made of 
the information contained herein. 
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Publication date of this section: 25 June 2025 
 

 
Category: PCP Budget allocation and contracting 

# Question Answer 

1 When you doubt whether the project is 
feasible "within the proposed budget", it 
means that the budget for the 3 phases of 
the later precommercial procurement is 
already (more or less) set? 

The total budget for PCP WISE is fixed at € 11.765.338,80. However, 
we are seeking feedback on the proposed distribution of the budget 
across the 3 different phases of the PCP, as well as on the envisaged 
number of contracts to be awarded within each phase through the 
RFI questionnaire or during the OMC events. The final distribution of 
this budget between the 3 phases, taking into account the feedback 
given during the OMC, will be published in the tender documents. 

2 Could you indicate how many projects you 
are thinking about funding, and the 
approximate budget per project? 
 

In principle, we offer 5 contracts in Phase 1, 3 contracts in Phase 2, 
and 2 contracts in Phase 3. Be mindful that flexibility will be provided 
to transfer the leftover budget from one phase to the next phase in 
case offers with a lower price than expected are received. For all 
phases, contracts will be financed until the remaining budget is 
insufficient to fund the next best tender. The exact number of 
contracts finally awarded will thus depend on the prices offered and 
the number of tenders passing the evaluation. 
 
The information about the (maximum) total budgets per phase is 
detailed in Table 3 of the OMC document. There is budget allocated 
to each one of the different phases, which will be awarded to winning 
suppliers.  However, we are seeking feedback on the proposed 
distribution of the budget across the different phases, as well as on 
the number of contracts envisioned to be awarded within each phase 
through the RFI questionnaire or during the OMC events. The final 
budget allocation and number of contractors per phase will be 
published in the tender documents. 

3 If the total budget of the PCP is about 12 
M€ and if only 2 projects are finally defined, 
can we conclude that it is about 6M€/ each 
project? 
 
 

The information about the (maximum) total budgets per phase is 
detailed in Table 3 of the OMC document. A specific budget is 
allocated to each of the three phases, which will be awarded to the 
winning suppliers. 
 
The current intention is to have competition between 5 contractors in 
Phase 1, 3 in Phase 2, and 2 in Phase 3. A maximum budget per 
contractor is defined for each phase. Based on the current proposed 
allocation, a maximum of €4,232,669.40 would be available per 
project that successfully reaches Phase 3. 

4 How many suppliers will be admitted in 
PCP Phases 1-3? Was it 5, 3, 2 suppliers 
respectively? 

Please see answer #2 

5 What's the expected budget for each PCP 
Phase per supplier? 

Please see answer #3 

6 I have a question regarding the number of 
contractors and the different PCP phases. 
You mentioned that for the first phase you 
will take 5 contractors. Is this something 
you're set on? From other PCP projects 

Given the scope of our challenge, we are currently proposing a 
budget allocation and number of projects according to Table 3 of the 
OMC document. This is indeed 5 contractors for Phase 1 of PCP 
WISE.  
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we're used that the number of taken 
contractors in the first phase is higher 
(+10). 

If we were to provide 10 or more contracts, this would also lower the 
budget, which may be an insufficient reward for the to be developed 
solution.  
 
However, if according to the answers given by market entities in the 
OMC, our envisioned budget allocation and number of contractors is 
inaccurate, this is subject to change. The definite budget allocation 
and number of contractors per Phase, considering overall market 
needs and preferences, will be provided in the final tender 
documents. 

 
Category: Use Cases 

# Question Answer 

7 Could you please state clearly whether you 
will procure 1 solution that shall tackle all 5 
groups/cases; or whether a solution can 
focus on 1 single group/case? 

The aim is that the solution tackles all 5 use cases. The core of the 
new solution consists of monitoring the soil-water-vegetation 
system to provide data relevant to the five use cases related to 
floods, wildfires, infrastructure risks in rural and urban areas. 

8 We may use Earth Observations such as 
satellite altimetry and surface areas, 
however, this is not specifically key to our 
solution. Is GNSS (water levels and ground 
movements) considered sufficient in terms 
of satellite-based Earth/environmental 
observations? 

More information on the use cases that your solution needs to tackle 
has been provided during the Infoday on the 28th of May and 
during the OMC-events. Recordings of these events are available. 
Currently, as part of the tender preparation, we are still exploring 
the requirements of the to-be-developed solutions. Feedback 
provided during the OMC will be considered when drafting our 
final tender documents. This will also include the requirements 
and wishes regarding the datasets that PCP WISE consortia will use 
to test their solutions.   

9 Could the solution combine remote 
sensing with in-situ sensing? i.e. satellite 
earth observation technologies combined 
with local sensoring platforms? 

The solution may combine such technologies, as long as the 
integration of remote sensing and in-situ measurements—such as 
satellite-based Earth observation and local sensor platforms—
contributes to the objectives of the project. 

10 Do you plan to create sub groups related to 
the use cases in the community platform or 
is it too soon? 

We have several sub-groups within the Community Platform, 
however not formed groups related to the Use Cases. The current 
division of the groups is: 
- Buyers 
- Suppliers 
- Replicators 
- Followers 
- Support organizations 
 
Interactions regarding the upcoming Call for Tenders are possible 
between members belonging to the same group but also to two 
different groups. 
 
We currently do not plan on forming groups related to the use cases, 
but this might be a possibility in the future if we deem this helpful. 
Always bearing in mind that bids must address all the 5 use cases.  
 

11 Is a consortium expected to cover all five 
use cases, or can it focus on a selected few 

Please see answer #7 
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of interest (e.g., only rural or urban use 
cases)? 

12 What is meant by high resolution in CASE 
3? 

In hydrology terms: 

- In city area (is street level) 5 to 30m 
- In rural area about 100m 

13 Any contractor could apply to up to 5 use 
cases but it is not mandatory to do so. Is 
that right? 

Please see answer #7 

14 Who are your expected end users? 
(Managers, Specialists, etc.) 

For example: Water managers, City managers, Nature managers, 
Agricultural managers. Also, we expect use from the utility sector 
and local governments. 

 
 

Category: OMC and general procedure questions 
# Question Answer 

15 How long and when do you (by now) plan 
implementation of phase 3 of the pre-
commercial procurement? The project's 
calendar is quite pre-framed. So please 
indicate in the OMC information, what's the 
actual flexibility possibility. For gathering 
really valuable and representative 
evidence and data, the solution - whatever 
it will be - must ensure a long enough time 
span. E.g. drought or wildfire situation in 
Catalunya is quite different in summer than 
in autumn; same as we have usually no 
major flood incidence in summer ...  Please 
inform about your preliminary planning for 
making the OMC answers relevant.  
 

The current timeline for the duration of each Phase is outlined in 
Table 3 of the OMC document, indicating 4 months for Phase 1, 11 
months for Phase 2, and 6 months for Phase 3. However, based on 
the responses and justifications provided through the Request for 
Information (RFI), published as part of the OMC process, 
adjustments between phases may be considered. Please note that 
any suggestions to modify the proposed timelines must be clearly 
substantiated and duly justified in your responses. 
 

16 Which is the deadline for the RFI survey? 
 

The deadline for the RFI was 22 June 2025 (23:59 CET). 

17 Will the selection criteria be "best value for 
money"? 

In the question received, the term “selection criteria” appears to 
have been used mistakenly. We assume that “award criteria” were 
actually meant and have based our response on that understanding. 
We intend to use award criteria based on "best value for money". The 
definite award criteria will be published in the Tender Documents, 
when the Call for Tenders is published. (Selection criteria relate to 
the qualifications of the supplier, while award criteria concern the 
evaluation of the proposal itself). 

18 Is the PPI, following the PCP, only available 
to the Phase 3 PCP suppliers, or all PCP 
suppliers, or even beyond? 

The potential future PPI procedure entails a new tender procedure 
OPEN to all interested market parties.  Participation in the PCP 
neither the lack of selection precludes per se the possibility to 
present a bid in a future PPI. 

19 If I understood correctly, the PCP will be 
going for sure, while is not granted a PPI, 
right? 
 

Correct; for now, PCP Wise just covers the PCP procedure. The 
intention of the Public Buyers Group is to have a follow up PPI after 
the conclusion of this PCP Wise project. Please bear in mind that 
PCP Wise is the follow-up of another project called "PROTECT CSA" 
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by the Public Buyers Group. Participants should see this as a sign 
that the  Public Buyers Group has a strong commitment to purchase 
the developed solutions, also after the PCP.  
 

20 How do you ensure that you receive a 
suitable amount of bids? I'm guessing: 
1) too few tenders indicates too tight 
specifications/scope or insufficient 
promotion of the call, but 
2) too many bids are challenging to assess, 
or perhaps indicate that the scope is not 
ambitious enough? 
Is 1) or 2) typically the bigger challenge in a 
PCP? 

Receiving a high number of bids would be favorable as it allows us to 
select the best contractors for PCP-WISE. This will yield the best 
results for our challenge. If we receive too few bids, it may be more 
challenging to fulfil PCP-WISE's needs.  
 
To ensure we receive enough bids during our call for tenders we are: 
1) Disseminating information on PCP-WISE through different media 
channels in the EU 
2) And hosting the OMC to help us specify our call for tenders to align 
with the market capabilities. 

21 Questions submitted through the e-
procurement platforms will be answered 
by 13 June or made public to all by 13 
June? 
 

We have delayed our first information notice regarding the answers 
to questions.  
 
We will publish an information notice with the answers to the asked 
questions that is publicly available on the 25th of June. 
 

22 At which point can the suppliers DISCUSS 
their innovations with the customers? OMC 
Event is a one way chance to ask a 
question, but is there, and when exactly?, 
an option for dialogues? 

As we are currently in the Open Market Consultation (OMC) phase, 
active engagement with the market is anticipated through structured 
interactions. In this context, you are invited to provide your feedback 
via the OMC events, the Request for Information (RFI) questionnaire, 
and the upcoming one-to-one meetings between buyers and 
suppliers, which will be conducted through the PCP WISE 
Community Platform over the coming period. 
 

23 Is there any obligation from the buyers to 
follow-up with a PPI? Does it depend if 
there are  suitable conditions? 

Please see answer #19. 

24 Does the participation but not selection to 
any of the 3 phases preclude the possibility 
to participate to the PPI? 

Please see answer #18. 

25 Does the PCP OMC phase enter into the 
"Competitive Dialogue" category (among 
the EU admitted procurement 
procedures)? 
 

The Pre-Commercial Procurement (PCP) Open Market Consultation 
phase is part of the preparatory activities of the PCP procedure. PCP 
is a different procedure, aiming to contract and spur R&D activities to 
develop ‘commercially unavailable solutions’. This is a different 
procedure than the ‘competitive dialogue’. You can find more 
information on the PCP approach in the OMC-document or on the 
website of the European Commission: https://research-and-
innovation.ec.europa.eu/strategy/support-policy-making/shaping-
eu-research-and-innovation-policy/new-european-innovation-
agenda/innovation-procurement/pre-commercial-procurement_en 

26 Will PCP WISE have follow up 
activities/actions after the end of this 
project? How will the result continue to be 
exploited operationally after the R&D 
period? 
 

Please see the answers to question #18 and #19.  
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27 We just heard a concern about who would 
pay for the services in one of the OMC 
sessions. Who do you see as the buyers 
and how willing do they appear to be paid? 
 

The public buyer group for PCP WISE is stated in the OMC-document 
and will also be included in the final tender documents published in 
the PCP WISE Call for Tenders.  
 
Assuming you are interested in the public buyers that are willing to 
pay for the developed solution after the PCP, we have formulated an 
answer to this in question #19.  
 
 

 
 

Category: Eligibility to participate in PCP WISE 
# Question Answer 

28 We have the idea to combine, also for 
rivers that become very wide, EO-derived 
water surface area with GNSS 
observations. That would expand the 
capabilities and EO component, but it is 
also in a lower level R&D stage. Would this 
be eligible? 

PCP WISE is looking for solutions that address critical challenges 
related to floods, droughts, heat stress, fires, and infrastructure 
impacts in both rural and urban areas. The project aims to develop 
an integrated, real-time soil-water-vegetation water intelligence 
solution. This solution will provide comprehensive information 
through monitoring, decadal hindsight, prediction, of the Soil-Water-
Vegetation-Atmosphere (SWVA) system for climate change 
adaptation. The use of space and Earth Observation (EO)-based 
information will help prevent and mitigate water-related crises, such 
as floods, droughts, heat stress, fires, and infrastructure impacts, 
with related spatial risk indicators for each sector.  
Please note that the expected starting Technology Readiness Level 
(TRL) is between TRL 4 and 6. The objective is for the developed 
solutions to reach a TRL of 8 by the end of the PCP process. 

29 Can consortia also include public body 
(universities, research centres?) 
 

In principle, this is allowed; but please note that participation in this 
Call for Tenders and the subsequent tendering procedure is open on 
equal terms to all types of operators that are established in and 
controlled by EU Member States or HE associated countries.   
Please also note that prior participation in the preparation of the PCP 
WISE tender might lead to exclusion if there is no other more 
proportionate way to avoid a potential conflict of interest and to 
ensure a level playing field with the rest of the tenderers. The PCP 
WISE Call for Tenders will contain an overview of eligibility criteria for 
suppliers.  
 
Prior participation in the preparation of the tender that results in a 
conflict of interest or distortion of competition shall be avoided and 
measures need to be in place to ensure a level playing field for all 
interested tenderers. 

30 Will partners of the PCP Wise consortium, 
like Fraunhofer, be able to compete with 
the supply of innovative solutions against 
non-members of the Consortium?  
 

No, the PCP WISE consortium partners cannot compete in the PCP 
tender. This would imply a conflict of interest that would breach the 
TFEU principles of equal treatment and non-discrimination. 
 

31 Are Swiss companies allowed to be part of 
the consortium? 
 

Yes, they are part of the Horizon Europe participating countries. 
https://ec.europa.eu/info/funding-tenders/opportunities/docs/2021-
2027/common/guidance/list-3rd-country-participation_horizon-
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euratom_en.pdf 
Please note that participation in this call for tenders and the 
subsequent tendering procedure is open on equal terms to all types 
of operators that are established in and controlled by EU Member 
States or HE associated countries.  The PCP-WISE Call for Tenders 
will contain an overview of eligibility criteria for suppliers.  
 

32 Can consortia include universities? Please see answer #29. 

33 It was mentioned that PCP WISE procurers 
have a preference for a consortium led by a 
large SME with domain knowledge like civil 
engineering. Do you have a preference of a 
multi-national consortium? 
 

The only limitation is that participation in this call for tenders and the 
subsequent tendering procedure is open on equal terms to all types 
of operators that are established in and controlled by EU Member 
States or HE associated countries.   
PCP Wise consortium has no preferences. The aim is to obtain 
relevant expertise. 
 

34 What is the definition of 'SME', what is the 
maximum number of employees? 
 

The definition that PCP-WISE uses for Small and Medium-sized 
enterprises is according to the definition of the European 
Commission: 
 
https://single-market-economy.ec.europa.eu/smes/sme-
fundamentals/sme-definition_en 
 

35 We have 6.700 employees. Does that mean 
that there can't be a role for us in PCP 
WISE? 
 

You can definitely participate. Also, companies that are not SMEs 
can have a role and synergies in PCP-WISE. Please note that 
participation in this call for tenders and the subsequent tendering 
procedure is open on equal terms to all types of operators that are 
established in and controlled by EU Member States or HE associated 
countries.  The PCP-WISE Call for Tenders will contain an overview of 
eligibility criteria for suppliers.  
 

36 Are public bodies (Research Institutes, 
University etc.) eligible to participate in a 
consortium? 

Please see answer #29. 

37 Are there any eligibility constraints on 
consortia, fx no of countries and/or 
companies? 

We are still drafting the tender documents for the upcoming PCP. In 
any case participation in this call for tenders and the subsequent 
tendering procedure is open on equal terms to all types of operators 
that are established in and controlled by EU Member States or 
Horizon Europe associated countries. 
 

38 I would appreciate if you could confirm that 
research centres can participate and that it 
is not only addressed to companies. 
 

Participation in this call for tenders and the subsequent tendering 
procedure is open on equal terms to all types of operators that are 
established in and controlled by EU Member States or HE associated 
countries. I.e., a subsidiary from a third country established in a 
Member State of HE Associated country can be partner in a 
consortium to submit an offer. A company established in a third 
country and not established in a Member State or HE associated 
country can act as a subcontractor. But not as main contractors. 
 
The tender document that will be published in September will 
provide more information on exclusion and selection criteria that a 
tenderer must comply with.  

https://single-market-economy.ec.europa.eu/smes/sme-fundamentals/sme-definition_en
https://single-market-economy.ec.europa.eu/smes/sme-fundamentals/sme-definition_en
https://single-market-economy.ec.europa.eu/smes/sme-fundamentals/sme-definition_en
https://single-market-economy.ec.europa.eu/smes/sme-fundamentals/sme-definition_en
https://single-market-economy.ec.europa.eu/smes/sme-fundamentals/sme-definition_en
https://single-market-economy.ec.europa.eu/smes/sme-fundamentals/sme-definition_en
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39 As an experienced GeoAI Space company 
based in Germany, could you still 
participate on the project to provide our 
added value solution components? 
 

If your solution contributes to tackling the use cases and adds value 
to the goals of PCP WISE within the scope of the tender, it will be 
valued.  
 
Please bear in mind that the eligibility criteria will be published in the 
final tender documents published during the Call for Tenders. To 
submit an eligible offer, consortia/parties need to possess all the 
competences needed to address this challenge and the use cases.  

40 Would it be more valuable for proposals to 
come from inter-European companies (i.e., 
companies from different EU countries)? 
 

Please see answer #33. 

41 What is the expected number of partners in 
a consortium? 
 

This depends on the number of partners needed to obtain the 
needed competences, resources and capabilities to develop a 
solution for PCP WISE. We have no specific expectations about the 
number of partners.  

 
Category: Intellectual Property Rights (IPR) 

# Question Answer 

42 Is the call-back period applicable only to 
solutions/consortia at the end of phase 3 
or to all solutions/consortia admitted to 
any of the 3 phases? 

The Public Buyers Group (PBG) can apply the call-back clause:  
(1) To the technology vendors that complete phase 3, in case of lack 
of commercial exploitation of the results (best effort to commercially 
exploit the Results of the PCP in a period of 4 years after the end of 
the Framework Agreement and Specific Contracts). In the previous 
phases the results of the PCP are still on a lower TRL (not close to the 
market to be commercialized).  
(2) To participants in all three PCP phases, in case of using Results to 
the detriment of the public interest, including EU strategic autonomy 
or security interest.  
Before exercising the right to require the transfer of the ownership of 
the Results, the lead procurer (hWh) will first contact the Contractor 
to verify any measures that the Contractor has taken to achieve 
successful commercial exploitation of the Results, to safeguard EU 
strategic autonomy and security interests and rules, to prevent use 
of the Results to the detriment of the public interest and to comply 
with its contractual obligations. 
 

43 Is my understanding correct that the 
developed solution has to remain in a pre-
commercial licensing mode, so meaning it 
cannot be sold also already to private 
sector buyers? If this is the case, this would 
be counter-market productive and not a 
good idea in my opinion because it is 
actually usually the private sector buyers 
that tell you if a solution has serios market 
traction.                                                                                                                   
 

As a technology provider not only will you retain the IPR of the 
developed solutions (so after the PCP you could further develop it), 
but you are also mandated to commercialize it in a period of 4 years 
after the PCP is over. We do want you to sell your solution after the 
PCP is over. What we mean is the Public Buyer Group will have a 
license to use the solution that has been developed up until the TRL 
level it was developed during the PCP. But bear also in mind that this 
license is NON-exclusive and NON-commercial. 
 
If you have a sellable solution, with pre-existing rights, you maintain 
these rights and have the right to commercialize the technology as 
you deem best.  
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44 Can a participating consortium "sell" 
commercially during the PCP? 
 

If you have a "commercial" solution, nothing in this PCP prevents you 
from selling it. However, please bear in mind that the early phases of 
a PCP are related to lower TRL.  
 

45 Each company in a consortium could bring 
parts of solution that already sell as 
individual components in the market now 
but indeed the requested solution for the 
PBG is not there yet and would be the 
result of the combined efforts of the 
consortium 
 

This question appears to refer to the pre-existing rights that may be 
used as building blocks for developing the solution within PCP WISE. 
In principle, any pre-existing components or technologies brought in 
by consortium partners remain the property of those partners, and 
they are free to commercialize them as they see fit. 

 
Category: Technical and Data requirements 

# Question Answer 

46 From the OMC, is required the combination 
of "various types of data" including "field 
measurements". 
Does it mean that the consortium should 
possess field data related to the different 
use cases and test sites at the time of 
proposal submission? 
Or rather that the consortium should 
demonstrate the technical capacity to take 
field measurements? 
Or rather that these are already available 
and in possession of all public buyers and 
the consortium should demonstrate the 
ability to use/integrate/interpret them? 
 

The contractor should demonstrate the capacity during the proposal 
stage to obtain the data, integrate available data and take field 
measurements needed for the proposed solution development. More 
details on data/infrastructure availability will be provided in the 
tender documents. 

47 From the OMC, "real-time" data and 
monitoring is required. It would be helpful 
to understand for each use case and test 
sites: 
-what data is available 
-what technology/infrastructure is 
available and if existing 
technology/infrastructure is expected to be 
integrated in the proposed solution 
 

The contractor should demonstrate the capacity during the proposal 
stage to obtain the data, integrate available data and take field 
measurements needed for the proposed solution development. More 
details on data/infrastructure availability will be provided in the 
tender documents. 

48 For (hyper) local and short-term 
forecasting, real-time in-situ monitoring, 
will be essential to get decent skills. We 
could offer that with several of some 
intended project partners. Is this a logical 
component of an offer for research? 

The tender documents will provide an overview of the necessary 
professional skills, capabilities and requirements of the to-be-
developed solutions. The submitted offer will be evaluated against 
these criteria and requirements. 

49 MODFLOW is very specific, why not OGC 
standards for instance? MODFLOW is only 
groundwater, I recommend data standards 

This is valuable and appreciated feedback. The Request for 
Information contains questions regarding this topic. Market feedback 
has been taken into account regarding other OGC standards, and we 
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that warrant interoperability, not one 
model suite. 

will provide further information on MODFLOW in the OMC Report and 
the final tender documents. 

 
 
 

Category: Financial proposals / Bids 
# Question Answer 

50 Can you please explain more details about 
the financial aspects of the tender? What 
costs are eligible for funding, what hourly 
rates are applicable, etc.? 

The financial aspects will be included in TD9 (Tender Document 9). 
FINANCIAL FORM. Each tenderer will have to provide a cost 
breakdown for Phase 1 and then an estimation for both Phase 2 and 
Phase 3. This breakdown will include as separate categories: 
personnel incl. hourly rates, materials, facilities, overhead costs, 
travel, sub-contracting, other potential costs that you might be 
incurring in and that do not fall in any other of the categories and the 
total price with shared IPR (that will be owned by you). Bear in mind 
that the proposal MUST comply with the definition of R&D services as 
described in the most recent version of the Frascati Manual. This 
means that the value of the R&D services provided by the contract 
must be more than 50% of the total value of the PCP framework 
agreement. 

51 Is it possible to buy sensor equipment for 
insitu measurements and validation of our 
products with the PCP budget? 

Be mindful that the project is a PCP, focusses mainly on the R&D 
Services. I.e. your proposal MUST comply with the definition of R&D 
services as described in the most recent version of the Frascati 
Manual. This means that the value of the total amount of products 
covered by the contract must be less than 50 % of the total value 
of the PCP framework agreement: (1) The offers for all 3 Phases 
may include only items needed to address the challenge in question 
and to deliver the R&D services described in this Request for 
Tenders; and (2) The total value of products offered in Phase 1 and in 
Phase 2 must be less than 50% of the value of the Phase 1 and Phase 
2 Contracts’ value. Tenders that go beyond the provision of R&D 
services will be excluded. 

52 What types of costs are eligible for 
reimbursement (e.g., overhead costs, 
travel)? 

The tender must include a detailed financial offer, as part of TD9. 
Financial form (provided in the tender documents). 
This form should be used to specify: 
 
-Binding unit prices for all items needed for carrying out phase 1 and 
for items that are expected to be needed for phase 2 and phase 3 
(given in euros, excluding VAT but including any other taxes and 
duties). The unit prices quoted for each category of items (e.g. hourly 
rates for junior and senior researchers, developers and testers) 
remain binding for all phases (i.e. for the duration of the framework 
agreement). Where new units/unit prices (e.g. for new tasks or 
equipment) are subsequently added to the phase 2 or 3 offers, they 
will become binding for the remaining phases. 
 
-A fixed total price for phase 1 and an estimated total price for phase 
2 and 3, broken down to show unit prices and the number of each 
unit needed to carry out phase 1 (given in euros, excluding VAT but 
including any other taxes and duties). 
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In addition, the financial section must include: 
 
-A price breakdown that shows the price for R&D services and the 
price for supplies of products (to demonstrate compliance with the 
definition of R&D). 
 
-A price breakdown that shows the location or country in which the 
different categories of activities are to be carried out (e.g. x hours of 
senior researchers in country L at y euro/hour; hours of junior 
developers in country M at b euro/hour), which personnel profile 
corresponds to R&D personnel. To demonstrate compliance with the 
requirement relating to place of performance. 
 
The information provided in the financial section of the tender will be 
used to evaluate the tenders on the basis of the compliance criteria 
and the price award criteria. 
The price paid to the contractor will cover all costs incurred by the 
contractor. The PBG is not going to pay any additional costs. 
 

53 Are standard funding rates applicable, or 
can we propose our own rates and is the 
proposal assessed based on value-for-
money? 

Please see answer #52. 

54 If standard rates are applicable, could you 
explain how these are built up? 

Please see answer #52. 
 

55 Are financial or in-kind contributions within 
the project required, or taken into account 
in the assessment of the proposal? 

Financial or in-kind contribution are not required but may be taken 
into account in the assessment. 
 
Please see answer #52 for more information. 

56 I noticed that there are different phases 
with different budgets and number of 
contracts. Does this mean that we can 
apply for different phases only? 

You need to submit a bid at the very beginning of the PCP (for phase 
1 already). Only tenderers selected at this stage and successfully 
completing phase 1 will be invited to submit a bid for phase 2. And 
only providers successfully completing phase 2 will be invited to bid 
to phase 3. 

 
 

Publication date of this section: 14 July 2025 
 
We have added a second Q&A section, containing all the questions and answers that have 
been asked during the One-on-One meeting(s) with suppliers that have filled out the RFI. 
This table contains questions that have been asked both during the meeting(s) and via e-
mail. 

 
Category: Financial proposals / Bids 

# Question Answer 

57 What is your vision on stakeholder 
involvement during the development 
phase? Given the buyers are also end-

PCP Wise has been carefully prepared in collaboration with end 
users (it has as foundational project : PROTECT CSA 
https://www.protect-pcp.eu/knowledge-hub/). I.e., the challenge 
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users? We don’t want to create something 
that is not going to be used. 

and the use cases have been drafted together with the public buyers 
and end users (to ensure it reflects real life needs). 
Moreover, during the execution of the PCP, there will be milestones 
to be completed, deliverables to be submitted and regular points of 
contact with the Lead Buyer to ensure that no major deviations occur 
and to give feedback to the supplier. The end goal is precisely to 
ensure obtaining a working prototype that tackles the real needs of 
the PCP WISE Public Buyers (and related end users) and of other 
buyers outside of the PCP WISE Consortium but participating in the 
project in the User Observatory Group. I.e., to ensure the further 
commercialisation and uptake of the final solution 

 58 Do you have expectations of the format of 
the bid response? 

This will be clearly outlined in the tender documents (we have 
template formats for the submission of the bids). There will be info 
sessions on the submission to clarify any questions you may have 
once you have access to the tender documents. 

59 Is there a limitation to the hourly rate that 
qualifies for the subsidy?  

No, in the PCP tender there is no limit on the hourly rate that is 
eligible for funding. There is a maximum budget per contractor per 
phase. In addition, the proposal must comply with the definition of 
R&D services, so this means that at least 50% of the total value of the 
contract must be spent on R&D. Please also refer to answer #50. 
 

60 Can you give some insights in what the 
solution would be worth / the earning 
capacity after the PCP WISE project?  

We can’t provide an exact number. Of course this depends on the 
quality of the solution. What we can say is that in addition to the 12 
public buyers in PCP WISE, there is a large group (150) of potentially 
interested buyers across Europe (with their own user groups) 
following from the PROTECT CSA.  
PCP Call – PROTECT 
Analysis-of-climate-challenges-in-European-regions.pdf 

 
Category: Use Cases 

# Question Answer 

61 Is it possible to add new use cases that are 
not already involved in this project?  

Our focus is on the needs of the 5 use cases which are mandatory. 
However, if you think it is useful to add new use cases, it would be 
possible, but it will be at your own cost. 

 62 Is PCP WISE planning to shed light on 
buyers’ requirements (must-haves, nice-
to-haves) in the RFP, or is this part of the 
discovery during the solution design 
phase? 

Yes, this will be duly indicated in the RFT (Request for Tenders). 
 

 
 Category: Technical and Data requirements 

# Question Answer 

63 Who are supplying the data? 
Is there a fixed set of data available? 
Is generating own data possible/an 
opportunity? 
Who is paying for the data? 

The Request for Tender (RFT) will request providers to indicate the 
data they want to use. The RFT will also indicate which data is 
relevant for the public buyers/users and list some data sets that can 
be used. Please note that during PCP WISE you need to develop and 
test a solution tackling the 5 use cases with the data that you choose 
to use (and that can, be the one indicated in the RFT), but after the 

https://www.protect-pcp.eu/pcp-call/
https://www.protect-pcp.eu/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/Analysis-of-climate-challenges-in-European-regions.pdf
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conclusion of PCP Wise you are mandated to further commercialise 
the solution. It is important to consider this aspect when selecting 
the data sets you may want to use. Generating own data may be an 
opportunity. The technology providers should take into account the 
cost they may need to pay for the data. 

64 Is there any structure on who will provide 
the data and whether we need to get it 
ourselves or will it be delivered? 

The goal is to make use of openly available data as much as possible. 
There will also be available certain data sets relevant for specific use 
cases. In addition, you can use your own datasets or buy your own 
data sets as well.  
 
The information on the available data sets that can be used will be 
provided in the Tender Documents. 
 
Please also refer to answer #63 

65 Will relevant data be provided to suppliers 
to support the design and implementation 
of the use cases? 

Please see answer #63 

66 Will the type and structure of available data 
per use case be described in the tender 
documentation? 

Yes, for the data pinpointed in the Tender Documents. 

67 Will the data required for the project be 
provided by the buyers, or third parties? 

Please see answer #63 

68 Will there be a predefined dataset available 
for all suppliers, or will each supplier need 
to generate or source their own data? 

Please see answer #63 

69 If suppliers are expected to generate their 
own data, will there be flexibility or support 
for doing so? 

Please see answer #63 

70 Who will be responsible for the cost of data 
acquisition, if applicable? 

The suppliers. The cost of data may however be included in the 
proposal, but please note answer #59. The proposal must comply 
with the definition of R&D services. 

71 If the purchase of data sets is necessary, it 
is for the bidder to allocate resources to it 
(you can indicate it in your budget 
estimation and in your price) 

Yes, the suppliers need to allocate resources and estimate the 
budget. 

72 Will the tender documentation include any 
specific requirements regarding the 
resolution, format, or frequency of the data 
to be used? 

Yes, this information will be detailed in the Tender Documents. 

73 Are there any requirements or alignment 
expected with existing data spaces (e.g. 
related to the Green Deal or sectoral data 
initiatives)? 

Yes, this information will be detailed in the Tender Documents. 

74 Will suppliers need to comply with any 
specific interoperability standards or 
frameworks? 

Yes, this information will be detailed in the Tender Documents. 

75 Do you have any specification on the 
resolution and frequency of the data? 
 

The output resolution in urban areas is about 5 to 30 m and in rural 
areas 100 m. This means you need strive in finding higher detailed 
resolution for your inputs or have creative statistical sound sub 
resolution solutions. 
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Category: Project execution and tender procedure 

# Question Answer 

76 Could you indicate when the administrative 
and technical specifications of the tender 
are expected to be published? 

Our goal is to publish the contract notice on the 5th of September. 
 

77 Will the consortium applying have to 
present any legal documentation like a 
consortium agreement in place? 

Yes. There are some template/forms that will need to be completed 
in this regard. The tender documents will include these forms. 

78 Will there be direct interaction between 
suppliers and members of the buyer group 
during the project execution phases? 

Yes. There will be clear milestones, deliverables and formal and 
informal meetings to provide feedback throughout the project 
execution. A timeline will be provided in the tender documents. 

79 Will the implementation of the use cases 
be linked to specific locations or pilot sites 
associated with the individual buyers? 

Yes.  The details will be indicated in the tender documents. 

80 How do you foresee the involvement of 
stakeholders, particularly end-users, 
during the development and testing 
phases? 

End-users have provided feedback for the use cases, requirements 
and test sites. They will participate during the different PCP phases 
to provide their duly feedback. 

81 Could you clarify the expected outcomes 
and deliverables for Phase 1 and Phase 2? 
Will it be defined in the tender 
specifications? 

This information will be clearly detailed in the tender documents. 

82 Will the evaluation criteria for these phases 
be detailed in the tender documents? 

This information will be clearly detailed in the tender documents. 

83 Who will we be dealing with after the bids 
have been selected and the contracts have 
been awarded? Who will we be in contract 
with?  

Het Waterschapshuis will act as the Lead Procurer representing all 
PCP WISE Buyers for the purpose of the signature of the Framework 
Agreements and Phase contracts, and the execution of the contract. 
The Governance structure of PCP WISE includes technical and 
financial committees to ensure the quality of the outcomes. 
Further information can be found in the tender documents. 

84 Is there any estimate on how much 
involvement there is from other countries 
as well? 

There has been involvement from many different European countries 
in all the PCP WISE events.  
 
The OMC report to be published by end-July on the PCP WISE website 
will provide more insights in this regard. 

85 Will it be possible to have contact with the 
participants of the Use Cases during the 
PCP WISE project (during the development 
phase)? 
 

We are writing User Story lines that give elaborate insight into the 
needs of the buyers. You will find these story lines in the tender 
documents once they are published.  
In addition, this kind of contact is possible with the purpose to obtain 
a solution that fits the needs of the public buyers. Thus, we deem it 
important they are involved with the suppliers during the project. 

86 How will the availability of those people 
(Public Buyers, question refers to question 
#85) be? 

We see huge involvement from all 5 use case leaders already. Their 
engagement is expected throughout the PCP phases when needed to 
provide feedback.  

87 Do you have an exact date on when you will 
publish the Call for Tenders? 

Please see answer #76 

88 When will you expect the bids? This has for now been set at the beginning of January (approx. 7 
January 2026). 

 


